Reading Spark 6                                                                         Key Structure
Reading 01   Boomerang Kids
25행    But critics of this phenomenon argue that this situation affects young adults.
목적격을 나타내는 방법
: 전치사 of, 소유격 등을 사용하여 목적격을 나타낼 수 있다. 따라서 critics of this phenomenon은 those who criticize this phenomenon으로 바꿔 쓸 수 있다.
	 
EX1    Supporters of the candidate were very disappointed after the scandal.
        (= Those who supported the candidate)
        그 스캔들 이후에 그 후보자의 지지자들(그 후보를 지지하는 사람들)은 매우 실망했다. 

EX2    His friends on the shore saw him motioning for help and went to his rescue. 
                                                            (= went to rescue him) 
해안에 있던 그의 친구들은 그의 도와 달라는 몸짓을 보고 그를 구하러 갔다.
 
Reading 02  Alarm Signals in Fish
15행    Interestingly, it is not unusual for pike to eat each other.
문장 수식 부사
: 문장 수식 부사인 interestingly, fortunately, luckily, naturally, obviously, clearly 등은 문두에 위치하여 문장 전체를 수식한다. 
		
EX1     Interestingly, a wounded minnow releases a chemical to attract more pike. 
흥미롭게도, 상처 입은 피라미는 더 많은 창꼬치들을 유인하기 위해 화학물질을 분비한다. 
= It is interesting that a wounded minnow releases a chemical to attract more pike. 
상처 입은 피라미가 더 많은 창꼬치들을 유인하기 위해 화학물질을 분비한다는 것은 흥미롭다. 

EX2     Fortunately, everything worked out all right in the end. 다행히, 모든 것이 결국 잘 되었다.
= It was fortunate that everything worked out all right in the end. 
모든 것이 결국 잘 되었던 것은 다행이었다.

Reading 03   Alcatraz Island
11행    This policy left prisoners with little else to do but imagine escape.  
but = except
: 부정어 다음에 but을 쓰면 except(~을 제외하고)의 뜻을 갖는다.

EX1     As he went bankrupt, there was nothing to do but start all over again. 
그는 파산했기 때문에, 처음부터 모든 것을 다시 시작할 수 밖에 없었다.
 
EX2     I had no choice but to accept the challenge.  
나는 그 도전을 받아들일 수밖에 없었다.
cf. have no choice but to + V: ~ 하는 수 밖에 없다 (관용적으로 쓰이는 표현)  
 
Reading 04   Product Placement 
27행   This suggests that PPL can be a powerfully subconscious device that encourages kids to develop preferences for certain brands.
suggest (that) + S + V
: suggest가 ‘제안하다’의 뜻으로 쓰일 때는 that절에 ‘(should +) 동사원형’을 써야 하지만, ‘암시하다, 시사하다’의 뜻으로 쓰일 때는 뒤에 오는 that절에 다양한 형태의 동사가 사용될 수 있다. 
	 			
EX1    This evidence suggests that he might be the criminal. 
이 증거는 그가 범인일 수 있다는 것을 암시한다. 

EX2    Her words suggest that she loves him. 그녀의 말은 그녀가 그를 사랑한다는 것을 암시한다.
cf. She suggested that we (should) go for a walk after dinner. (suggest = propose) 
그녀는 우리에게 저녁 식사 후에 산책을 가자고 제안했다.

Reading 05   Review of The Curious Case of Benjamin Button 
8행 	Benjamin Button is a fascinating character played by Brad Pitt whose existence runs counter to that of those around him in that he ages backwards; born an old man and getting younger as time goes by. 
in that + S + V
: ~이기 때문에, ~라는 점에서 
		
EX1    His life is extraordinary in that he devoted his whole life to helping people in need. 
그의 삶은 그의 인생 전체를 어려운 사람들을 돕는 데 바쳤다는 점에서 비범하다.
EX2    He was fortunate in that he had friends to help him.  
그는 자신을 도와줄 친구들이 있었기 때문에 운이 좋았다.

Reading 06   Resurrection Plant
21행    The resurrection plant is unique not only because of its ability to go after the water it
needs, but also because of the way it reproduces.  
병렬구조
: 두 개 이상의 개념이 똑같은 중요성을 갖고 있다는 것을 보여 주기 위해 똑같은 형태의 단어들을 사용하는 것을 병렬구조라고 한다.
		
EX1    The artwork is famous not only for its beauty, but for the way it was created.  
그 미술품은 그 자체의 아름다움뿐만 아니라 창조된 방식 때문에도 유명하다.

EX2    Peter neither saw a bird nor smelled a flower when he was in prison.  
Peter는 감옥에 있는 동안 새도 보지 못했고 꽃 향기도 맡지 못했다.

Reading 07  Handwriting Analysis
6행     It is thought that certain letter formations and patterns in writing reveal personality traits. 
인식/전달 동사(think, believe, know, suppose, say)의 수동태
: ‘인식(~라고 생각하다)’, ‘전달(~라고 말하다)’의 의미를 가지는 동사가 that절을 목적어로 가질 때, 수동태 문장으로 전환할 경우에는 that절인 주어가 너무 길어지므로 가주어 it을 사용한다. 

EX1     They think that Jennifer is able to deal with many things at a time. 
        = It is thought that Jennifer is able to deal with many things at a time. 
        = Jennifer is thought to be able to deal with many things at a time.  
사람들은 Jennifer가 많은 일을 한번에 처리할 수 있다고 생각한다. 
 
EX2     People believed that hundreds of birds died.
        = It was believed that hundreds of birds died. 
        = Hundreds of birds were believed to have died.   
사람들은 수십만 마리의 새들이 죽었다고 믿었다.

Reading 08   Hair Detectives 
8행 	Hydrogen and oxygen atoms can vary in how much they weigh.
명사나 명사구 앞에 쓰여 범위를 한정하는 전치사 in 
: 어떤 상태를 설명하는 문장의 주로 끝에서 그 상태가 어떤 점에서 다른지 범위를 한정하기 위해 전치사 in이 종종 쓰여 ‘~이, ~가’의 뜻으로 해석된다.
EX1   	The pole is three meters in length. 	
그 장대는 길이가 3미터이다. 

EX2 	You should eat vegetables that are rich in vitamin C. 
너는 비타민 C가 풍부한 야채를 먹어야 한다.  

Reading 09   War Taboos
11행    Another taboo related to war comes from the conflict between Austria and Hungary in the late 1800s. 
명사 뒤에서 명사를 수식하는 분사
: 분사가 다른 어구를 수반할 때는 명사 뒤에서 수식하는데 여기서는 명사(taboo)와 분사(related) 사이에는 ‘주격 관계대명사 + be동사’인 which is가 생략된 것으로 볼 수 있다.
			
EX1    There are many types of dangerous diseases caused by obesity.
 
= There are many types of dangerous diseases which are caused by obesity.
비만으로 인해 발생하는 많은 종류의 위험한 질병들이 있다. 

EX2    The station was crowded with people waiting for the train.

        = The station was crowded with people who were waiting for the train. 
그 정거장은 기차를 기다리는 사람들로 붐볐다.

Reading 10  Japanese Kawaii Culture
9행     For one thing, surrounding themselves with childish characters is a way for people to hang on to their youthful idealism. 
주어와 동사의 수 일치 
: 주어가 동명사일 때 단수 동사를 사용한다.

EX1     Surrounding herself with flowers is a way for her to cheer herself up. 
꽃으로 그녀 주변을 둘러싸는 것은 그녀가 자신의 기분을 북돋는 방식이다.

EX2     Learning about people in ancient times has long interested scholars.  
고대 사람들에 대해 배우는 것은 오랫동안 학자들의 관심을 끌었다.

Reading 11   Social Darwinism
23행    Social Darwinism, though used to justify evil in many cases, was also used for good. 
접속사 + 과거분사
: though, until, when, if, while 등의 접속사 다음에서는 ‘주어 + be동사’가 종종 생략된다. 위의 문장에서는 though 다음에 it was가 생략됐다. 
			
EX1     His theory, when published to the world, surprised everyone. 
		= His theory, when it was published to the world, surprised everyone. 
그의 이론이 세상에 발표되었을 때, 모든 이들이 놀랐다. 

EX2     Leave it in the oven until cooked to a light brown color. 
	= Leave it in the oven until it is cooked to a light brown color. 
그것이 옅은 갈색으로 요리될 때까지 오븐에 두어라.

Reading 12   What We Remember during Learning Sessions
18행    Finally, closure should take place during the last 15 minutes because this is the second 
  most powerful learning period and an opportunity for the learner to wrap up and really
[bookmark: _GoBack] digest what he or she learned in the previous stages.
he or she
: 성별을 알 수 없는 단수 명사(the learner)를 가리키는 대명사는 격식을 차린 표현에서는 he or she로 받고, 격식을 차리지 않는 표현에서는 수에 관계없이 they로 받는다.
	 
EX1      This is a good chance for a student to review what he or she learned in the previous class. 
이것은 학생이 전 수업에서 배운 것을 복습할 수 있는 좋은 기회이다.
EX2    If a person is hurt by someone else, they can sue in court.   

어떤 사람이 다른 사람에 의해 다치면 법원에 소송을 제기할 수 있다.

Reading 13  Spider Hunting Wasp 
27행   Yet, they haven’t discovered what it is or how it works. 
       간접 의문문의 어순 
: 의문사 + 주어 + 동사
			
EX1    They didn’t know who the boss was.  
그들은 누가 상사인지 몰랐다. 

EX2    Can you tell me how important that meeting is to the company?  
그 회의가 회사에 얼마나 중요한지 나에게 말씀해 주시겠어요?

Reading 14   The Gordian Knot 
13행   This time the oracle told them that whoever untied the knot tied by Gordius would be their next ruler. 
whoever (+ S) + V 
: ~하는 사람은 누구든지; 누가 ~ 하더라도
			
EX1    Whoever touched the stone was cursed. 
       (= Any person who touched the stone)
누구든지 그 돌을 만진 자는 저주를 받았다. 

EX2    I don’t want to see them, whoever they are. 
                               (= no matter who they are)
그들이 누구든지 간에 나는 그들을 보고 싶지 않다.

Reading 15   Polychronic & Monochronic Cultures 
7행    Not only do these types of cultures have different approaches to working, they also view their worlds much differently.  
부정의 부사 + do/does/did + 주어 + 동사
: 부정의 부사가 강조를 위해 문장 앞에 위치하면 주어 앞에 주어의 수와 시제에 따라서do/does/did를 사용하고 동사는 원형의 형태로 사용한다. 
			
EX1   Not only does he play lots of instruments, he also sings well. 
	그는 많은 악기를 연주할 뿐만 아니라 노래도 잘 부른다. 

EX2   Little did I realize that one day Brendan would become famous.
      어느 날 Brendan이 유명해질 것이라는 것을 나는 전혀 깨닫지 못했다. 
cf. little이 know, think, dream, realize, care, suspect 등의 동사 앞에서 사용되면 ‘전혀 ~않다’의 뜻을 갖는다.

Reading 16   Maggot Therapy 
21행    For hundreds of years, doctors placed maggots in people’s wounds to help clean them out.  
구동사〔2어동사〕의 어순
: 구동사의 목적어가 대명사일 때 대명사는 반드시 동사와 부사 사이에 위치해야 한다.
			
EX1     Martin picked her up at the airport.  Martin은 공항으로 그녀를 태우러 갔다.
		       ((X) picked up her)

EX2     They were scheduled to play badminton, but they called it off.  
((X) call off it)
그들은 배드민턴을 칠 예정이었지만 그것을 취소했다.

Reading 17   Ella Fitzgerald 
20행    This special talent of Ella’s began to shine. 
한정사 + 명사 + of + 소유격/소유대명사
: 한정사(a/an, this/that, some/any 등)와 소유격(my, your, her 등)은 명사 앞에 함께 쓰일 수 없다. 
	
EX1     These hidden abilities of Jimmy’s surprised his parents. 
        ((X) Jimmy’s these hidden abilities)
		Jimmy의 이러한 숨겨진 재능은 그의 부모를 놀라게 했다. 
EX2     He hated that pride of hers and secretly dreaded it.   
((X) her that pride)
그는 그녀의 그러한 자부심을 싫어했고, 또 그것을 남몰래 두려워했다.

Reading 18   What Do You Do with Your Palms?
3행    The next time you wonder if someone is telling you the truth, try watching their hands. 
try + -ing: 시험 삼아 ~해보다 
try + to부정사: (어려운 것을) 하려고 노력하다
		
EX1   She tried eating a lot of vegetables to lose weight.
	그녀는 살을 빼려고 야채를 많이 먹어 보았다. 

EX2   He tried to move the sofa by himself.  
그는 소파를 혼자서 옮기려고 했다.

Reading 19   Animals Are Their Own Doctors
1행   Traditional folklore from around the world gives numerous examples of animals using plants as remedies to cure themselves and others of injury and illness. 
‘분리·박탈’을 의미하는 전치사 of
: 빼앗기거나, 제거되거나, 주어 버린 것을 표시하기 위해서 of가 특정 동사들과 관용적으로 함께 사용된다.
		
EX1    They’re depriving him of a chance to succeed. 
그들은 그에게서 성공할 기회를 빼앗고 있다.

EX2    Two men broke into the house, and robbed the old lady of all her jewelry. 
두 남자가 그 집에 침입하여 노부인에게서 그녀의 모든 보석을 강탈했다.

Reading 20   Edgar Allan Poe
16행    In The Tell-Tale Heart, the narrator goes crazy and murders his roommate.
become의 뜻을 갖는 go, grow, run, fall, turn 
  : 2형식으로 형용사와 함께 쓰여 상태의 변화를 나타낸다. 
EX1     The food has gone bad, so I threw it away.  그 음식이 상해서 버렸다.  

EX2     She turned red and ran out of the room.  그녀는 얼굴이 빨개져서 방을 뛰쳐나갔다.

Reading 21   The Water Crisis 
13행   Such is the significance of water in the Middle East that its distribution is prominent in all existing peace treaties and will be sure to play a major role in all future negotiations between countries. 
       such + be + 명사(구) + that
: ‘S + be + such that절’의 문형에서 such가 문두로 강조를 위해 나갈 수 있는데 이 경우 주어와 be동사가 도치된다. ‘굉장히 ~하여서’라는 뜻으로, ‘so + 형용사 + that절’의 문형에서 so가 형용사와 함께 쓰이는 것과는 달리 such는 대명사이므로 독립적으로 쓰여 바로 뒤에 that절을 수반한다. 
	 	
EX1    Such is the sensitivity of the problem that no one wants to talk about it. 
= The sensitivity of the problem is such that no one wants to talk about it. 
       = The problem is so sensitive that no one wants to talk about it. 
	 문제의 민감성 때문에 아무도 그것에 대해 말하고 싶어 하지 않는다. 

EX2    Such is the interest in Dr. Watson’s talk that it will be held in a bigger lecture hall. 
= The interest in Dr. Watson’s talk is such that it will be held in a bigger lecture hall. 
= The interest in Dr. Watson’s talk is so great that it will be held in a bigger lecture hall.
Watson 박사의 강연에 대한 관심이 너무 커서 그 강연은 더 큰 강의실에서 개최될 것이다.

Reading 22   Crime Fiction 
16행   When readers or movie viewers connect with the atmosphere of a crime story, they begin to search for evidence as if they were detectives. 
as if = as though: 마치 ~인 것처럼
: as if 다음에는 현재 사실과 반대되는 가정을 하기 위해 가정법 과거를 사용할 수 있다.
		
EX1     He ignored me as if I were a stranger. 
                       (But I am not a stranger.)
그는 마치 나를 모르는 사람처럼 무시했다. 
EX2     She treats him as though he were a member of her family. 
(But he is not a member of her family.)
그녀는 그를 마치 자신의 가족처럼 대우한다.

Reading 23   Nuclear Non-Proliferation Treaty 
12행   One hundred eighty-nine countries have signed the NPT, five of which have nuclear weapons: the U.S., the UK, France, Russia, and China.
some/none/all/few + of which  
: 앞 문장에서 언급된 명사의 일부(수나 양)에 대해서 언급하고자 할 때 수나 양을 나타내는 대명사인 some, none, all, few, many 등을 of which 앞에 사용하여 나타낼 수 있다. 언급되는 명사가 사물일 경우는 ‘of which’를 사용하고, 사람일 때 ‘of whom’을 사용한다.
		
EX1    It’s a family of three children, two of whom are twins. 
	                           (= and two of them are twins)
3명의 자녀를 둔 가족인데, (자녀 중) 두 명은 쌍둥이다. 

EX2    She brought her three friends, none of whom I had ever met before. 
                                    (= and I had ever met none of them before)
그녀는 세 명의 친구들을 데리고 왔는데 나는 그들 중 아무도 전에 만나 본 적이 없었다.

Reading 24   Endangered Species 
14행   According to one study, more than a quarter of all medical prescriptions contain 
chemicals discovered in plants and animals. 
a half/a quarter/two-thirds 등 + of + 단수 명사 + 단수 동사
a half/a quarter/two-thirds 등 + of + 복수 명사 + 복수 동사
			
EX1   A quarter of the students in that school play computer games more than four times a week. 
그 학교 학생의 4분의 1이 일주일에 4번 이상 컴퓨터 게임을 한다. 

EX2   Nearly two-thirds of the nation’s population lives in the capital city. 
그 나라의 인구 중 거의 3분의 2가 수도에 거주한다.
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